
ODESSA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
CITY OF ODESSA, TEXAS 

August 8, 2019 
 

A regular meeting of the Odessa Development Corporation (ODC) was held on August 
8, 2019 at 2:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers, fifth floor, City Hall, 411 W. 8th St., 
Odessa, Texas. 
 
Members present: Tim Edgmon, Gene Collins, Ted Tuminowski; and Mayor David R. 
Turner, ex-officio.  
 
Members absent:  Betsy Triplett-Hurt and Melanie Hollmann. 
 
Others present: 

City Staff: Norma Aguilar-Grimaldo, City Secretary; Natasha Brooks, Senior 
Assistant City Attorney; Gary Landers, Interim City Attorney; Robert Carroll, Assistant 
City Attorney; Cindy Muncy, Interim Assistant City Manager; Michael Marrero, City 
Manager; Phillip Urrutia, Assistant City Manager; 

ODC Contractors: Wesley Burnett, Economic Development; Craig Van Amburgh, 
CVA; Sondra Eoff, MOTRAN; Tyler Patton, UTPB-SBDC; Bryan Bierwirth, UTPB-SBDC; 
Renee Earls, Chamber of Commerce; and 

Others: Council members Malcolm Hamilton and Mari Willis; and other interested 
citizens.   

 
A quorum being present, Mr. Edgmon called the meeting to order and the following 
proceedings were held: 
 
Mr. Collins gave the invocation. 
 
July 18, 2019 minutes.  Motion was made by Mr. Collins and seconded by Mr. 
Tuminowski to approve the minutes. The motion was approved by unanimous vote.  
 
Contractors report: Economic Development: Odessa Chamber, CVA Advertising 
and Marketing, UTPB-America’s SBDC, MOTRAN, and City Administrative support.   
Mr. Burnett reported that activity was steady.  Grow Odessa would report on Summit at 
the September meeting.  The cost was being finalized.  American Standard was moving 
forward.  The Rack project would be up for Council approval.  The company would 
create 100 jobs with 59 new jobs.  Mr. Collins asked about the downturn in the economy.  
Mr. Burnett stated it was steady.  Mr. Tuminowski stated it has slowed down but was not 
yet normal.  
 
Mr. Van Amburgh reported that more interviewees would be scheduled for the podcast. 
Publications were placed. Television spots premiered at the All Star Game and would be 
throughout the month during other major events.  There were two outdoor digital 
billboards for ODC.  Phone calls were generated from the billboards.  The social media 
was down slightly but still doing well. 
 
Mr. Patton reported UTPB-SBDC had four seminars with 158 attendees.  There were 
seven new businesses with three in Odessa.  Six new jobs were created in Odessa.  
Capitalization totaled $6.7 million year to date.  Mr. Bierwirth was auditing the past 
Business Challenge winners.  He gave an update on the recent winners.  Planning for 
the next challenge began. 
 



ODC Minutes 
August 8, 2019 
Page 2 
 
Mrs. Eoff provided the MOTRAN update.  Revisions were being made to the Unified 
Transportation Plan.  She asked for continued support of the $600 million plan for the 
area.  The City of Midland approved MOTRAN’s budget.   
 
Mrs. Muncy reported on the June financial statement. She stated that assets were $58.2 
million.  Liabilities were $3.4 million that included the parking garage payment.  She 
reported on the reserved and unreserved funds.  Sales tax would exceed $14 million for 
the year.  Expenditures for June were $1,739,947.  The investment portfolio had good 
interest rates.  Total investments were $58,047,640.  Mr. Collins asked if the ODC could 
invest in its own funds.  Mrs. Muncy reported that would be a conflict of interest.  
 
Adopt budget for FY 2019-20. Mrs. Muncy stated that the board would consider the 
General Development Plan and contracts in September.  Mr. Edgmon recommended 
two changes:  remove the Odessa Hispanic Chamber of Commerce’s request since it 
was not eligible under the guidelines and keep the Business Challenge award at 
$350,000.  Mr. Collins stated that the Hispanic Chamber of Commerce request was a 
project to recruit teachers.  He stated that the Business Challenge need to expand its 
type of businesses.  Mr. Edgmon asked that a meeting be scheduled with the SBDC 
staff to discuss the concerns.  Mr. Tuminowski stated that the businesses should include 
industrial type as opposed to just retail.   
 
Motion was made by Mr. Tuminowski and seconded by Mr. Collins to approve the 
budget with the two changes. The motion was approved by unanimous vote. 
 
Appoint two new members to the Compliance Committee and reappointing three 
current members for another two-year term. Mr. Collins ask that Chris Walker be a 
voting member to the board by appointment.  Mr. Edgmon stated that Ms. Hollmann 
suggested Gavin Norris.   
 
Motion was made by Mr. Collins and seconded by Mr. Tuminowski to appoint the Chris 
Walker to the Compliance Committee. The motion was approved by unanimous vote.  
 
Motion was made by Mr. Collins and seconded by Mr. Tuminowski to reappoint the Mike 
Withrow, Virginia Ruiz, and Jefferson Cox to the Compliance Committee. The motion 
was approved by unanimous vote.  
 
A new Odessa Black Chamber of Commerce representative would need to replace Mr. 
Walker on the committee. 
 
Review and action on proposal from Compliance Committee relating to OHFC 
request. Mr. Burnett reported that Odessa Housing Finance Corporation submitted an 
application for infrastructure incentives.  The Compliance Committee reviewed, 
discussed and recommended the application.  The project would be for housing project 
on 87th St. with 215 units.  There would be a 4% of reimbursement of funds.  Mr. 
Tuminowski supported the project, as it would help the community.  Mr. Collins 
commended the Legal Department and there would be more opportunities for housing.   
 
Motion was made by Mr. Collins and seconded by Mr. Tuminowski to approve the 
application for infrastructure incentives. The motion was approved by unanimous vote.  
 
 



ODC Minutes 
August 8, 2019 
Page 3 
 
Consider the Legal Department’s response to Board member Collins request to 
use Type A city sales tax funds on Type B projects relating to housing. Ms. Brooks 
reaffirmed that Type A funds could be used for Type B projects but specific requirements 
must be met.  An election and a public hearing needed to be conducted.  She explained 
that a clearly described project was required.  Mr. Collins asked for a broad project such 
as a land bank.  He stated that there was more opportunity with 4B. He asked for a 4B 
affordable housing project be voted at an election. Mr. Edgmon stated that a projected 
needed to be clarified.  Mr. Tuminowski asked to talk to community members.  He stated 
that City was short staff with engineering and inspection.  He asked if the City could be 
subsidized.  Mr. Marrero stated that the issue was being addressed and would provide a 
future update.  Ms. Brooks would get the details for a possible May election. 
 
State EDC training.  Mr. Edgmon informed the board about the Economic Development 
Sales Tax Workshop.  Mr. Collins was attending as well as Legal staff. 
 
ODC Committee and Officer Reports. Mr. Collins reported that Downtown Odessa 
would meet on as needed basis.  Mr. Edgmon reported that the Compliance Committee 
met on the housing application. The meeting adjourned at 2:48 p.m.  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED: 
 
 
 
Norma Aguilar-Grimaldo, TRMC, CMC Tim Edgmon     
City Secretary     Vice President 


